for the year ended 31 March 2007

*AQYWWTUS*




Scotia Gas Networks plc
Annual report
for the year ended 31 March 2007

Contents

Directors and advisers 1
Operating and financial review . 2-10
Directors’ report for the year ended 31 March 2007 11-14
Corporate governance statement 15-20
Statement of Directors' responsibiities 21
Independent auditors’ report to the members of Scotia Gas Networks plc 22-23
Consolidated profit and loss account for the year ended 31 March 2007 24
Consolidated statement of total recognised gains and losses for the year ended 31 March 2007 25
Balance sheets as at 31 March 2007 26
Consclidated cash flow statement for the year ended 31 March 2007 27
Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net debt 28

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2007 29 - 56




Scotia Gas Networks plc

Directors and advisers

Directors
Gregor Alexander

Tanya M Covassin
Stephen Dowd

Colin W Hood

Robert McDonald
James McPhillimy
Sebastien B Sherman
Robert Watters

Secretary
Allsa M Gray

Registered office
St Lawrence House
Station Approach
Horley

Surrey

RH6 9HJ

Registered auditors
Deloitte & Touche LLP

London

Registered number
04958135




Scotia Gas Networks plc

Operating and financial review
for the year ended 31 March 2007

This operating and linancial review sets out the main trends and factors underlying the development
and performance of the Company and its subsidiary undertakings (together the “Group”) during the
year ended 31 March 2007 as well as those matters which are likely to affect our future development
and performance

The Directors, in preparing this operating and financial review, have sought to comply with the
Accounting Standard Board's 2006 Reporting Statement Operating and Financial Review as far as it
applies to the circumstances of the Group

The business, Its objectives and strategy

The Group operates the regulated gas transportation businesses for the Southern and Scotland
region gas distribution networks, two of eight regional gas distnbution networks in the United
Kingdem QOur gas distnbution networks compnise approximately 74,000 kilometres of gas mains
delivering natural gas to approximately 4 0 million domestic, commaercial and industnal customers in
the Southern region and to approximately 1 7 mililon domestic, commercial and industnial customers
in Scotland The Southern network stretches from Milton Keynes in the north, to Dover in the east
and Lyme Regis in the west, including London boroughs to the south of the River Thames, whilst the
Scotland network distributes gas i all of Scotland to 75% of households, including remote areas
through the Scottish independent undertakings at Stornoway, Wick, Thurso, Cban and
Campbeltown

Scotia Gas Networks plc (“the Company” or “SGN") 1s owned by a consorium made up of Scottish
and Southern Energy plc, Barealis Infrastructure Europe (UK) Limited which 1s indirectly wholly
owned by the Ontarno Municipal Employees Retirement System and OTPPB Investments (UK)
Limited which 1s owned by Ontario Teachers' Pension Plan Board

The regulated businesses are regulated by the Office of Gas and Electncity Markets (“Ofgem”)
History

On 1 June 2005, the Company acquired the entire share capital of Southern Gas Networks Limited
and Scotland Gas Networks Limited These companies had acquired the trade and assets of the
Southern and Scotland region gas distribution networks respectively from their then parent, Transco
ple, on 1 May 2005 (Transco plc subsequently changed its name to National Gnd Gas plc)
Southern Gas Networks Limited and Scotland Gas Networks Limited subsequently re-reqistered as
public imited companies and changed their names to Southern Gas Networks plc and Scotland Gas
Networks plc respectively

Objectives and strategy

The Group’s principal objectives are to deliver natural gas safely, rekably and efficiently across the
gas distnbution networks and to provide the highest standard of service to our stakeholders, whilst
delivering value to our shareholders Our strategy therelore places the highest emphasis on
ensuring our activities are carned out sately and that the networks operate in a rehable and efficient
manner, so that benchmarks and regulatory targets can be exceeded to the benefit of all of our
stakeholders

Growth in the Group's Regulatory Asset Value {“RAV") 1s achieved by the efficient delivery of capital
and replacement expenditure programmes and therefore our financial objectives are set to ensure
our regulatory targets are achieved or outperformed

Ovur financing objective 1s to ensure an efficient capital structure that mitigates interest rate nsk
through maintaining a mimimum of 75% of debt, excluding shareholders’ loans, at either fixed rates of
interest or index linked In addition we have undertaken not to exceed a debt to RAV ratio for the
regulated businesses of 77 5%
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External and regulatory environment

The management and operation of the Group's transportatton assets are subject to a sernes of
legisiative requirements which reguire us to ensure that our assets are managed and operated in a
sate and relable manner We must also ensure that arrangements are in place to respond to
emergency situations and to ensure hazardous work 1s carned out safely and with munimum
disruption

The pnmary legislation controlling the Group’s activities as a gas transporter 1s the Gas Act 1986
Under the Gas Act, we hold licences which allow us to operate the gas distnbution networks we own
These husinesses are regulated by the Office of Gas and Electnicity Markets (“Ofgem”), and Qfgem
has established price control mechanisms that govern the amount of revenue that can be earned by
reguiated businesses, typically covering five year price control penods Olgem assess the revenue
and investment plans of the businesses in order to deterrmine an efficient level of expenditure and
the quality of service requirements for the networks are also taken into account A cost of capital for
the required investment in the networks 1s also deterrmned

The current pnce control penod covers the one year extension period to 31 March 2008, and in
December 2007 Ofgem will publish its final proposals for the next full five year revtew covering the
period from 1 Apni 2008 to 31 March 2013 We believe the policy framework for shrinkage gas,
pensions deficits and capital and replacement expenditure have all been satisfactorly dealt with in
the context of the one-year review period

The Group 15 also subject to safety legislation which 1s enforced by the Heath and Safety Executive
(*HSE") in the UK The organisation processes and procedures are covered in a safety case which 1s
subject to acceptance by HSE

Market climate

The UK 15 1n a period where gas supply patterns are moving 1o a positton where more relance 1s
piaced on imporied gas The dechine in UK continental shelf gas reserves and the UK energy policy
taking cognisance of chimate change 1s drving this shift towards greater use of imported gas

Factors affecting the business

Our principal activity 1s the operation of highly complex infrastructure networks  As a consequence
there are a number of factors that may influence the development and performance of the business
and the financial returns we can achieve The principal factors that influence the business are as
faliows

Regulatory price controls

As outlined above, the prices we can charge for the use of our networks are determined In
accordance with requlator approved price controls  The outcome of the five year raview will
have a significant impact on the revenues we obtain In addition, the arrangements may
include certain targets set by the reguiator whereby we are able 1o earn additional revenues
by outperforming the targets, or we may be penalised if we do not meet them. Consequently,
our regulatory price controls have a significant influence on our overall financial performance
and on shargholder returns

Additionally, the regulatory price controls include an allowed rate of return for the investment
we make in the networks The level of the allowed rate of return deterrmines the extent to
which mvestment to increase the quality and capacity of the networks 1s economically viable
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Safety and reliability of the networks

Our ability ta operate the networks safely and retiably 1s of the hughest importance to us  Qur
performance in these areas affects the costs we mcur and our overall financial performance

Efficiency

Our objective 15 to ensure that gas 1s delivered as efficiently as possible through our networks
This allows us to imit pnice increases and improve our own financial performance

Interest rates

The costs of financing our operations are affected by changes in interest rates as some of our
borrowings are held at floating rates We hedge our exposure to changes in interest rates by
holding both fixed rate and index linked borrowings and by holding dernvative financial
instruments (interest rate swaps) where necessary to achieve the desire profile of interest rate
nsk

Seasonality and gas volumes

Changes in the quantities of gas delivered through our networks may result in an increase or
decrease in our collected revenues, with the impact of changing volumes partly offset by
changes 1n costs or sometimes they may result in an under or over recovery against our
allowable revenue Where there 1s an under or over recovery against our allowable revenue
there 15 a corresponding adjustment to revenues in future period revenues 1 e such changes
in volumes simply lead to timing differences as to when revenue 1s earned Gas volumes are
affected by weather, consumer demand and network avadability In respect of weather this
leads to gas volumes beng typically tigher dunng the winter months leading o revenues
being weighted more towards the end of the financial year

Principal risks and uncertainties

As well as the opportunities we have to grow and develop our business, we face certain risks and
uncertainties in achieving our objectives The principal nsks and uncertainties we have identified are
as follows

¢ Regulatory price control treatments of certain costs, and allowed regulatory rate of
return on investments,

+ Changes in laws or regulation affecting our business, for example environmental or
health and safety law or regulation,

* Breaches of laws or regufation affecting our business, or breaches of our licence
conditions,

« Failure of the network or other critical non-network operations,
» Pension scheme funding requirements, and

+ Changes in tax allowances or rates

We also outline our principal financial nsks in the Directors’ Report on pages 12 and 13 The Board
of Directors reviews the principal risks and uncertainties facing the business and considers the rnisk
management processes 1n place, which are designed to safeguard assets and to manage, rather
than elrminate, matenal nsks to the achievement of our business objectives These reviews
recognise that any such process can provide only reasonable, and not absolute, assurance against
matenal misstatement or loss  Further details of the processes the Board of Directors have in place
are set out Iin the Comorate Governance Statement on pages 15 to 20
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Stakeholders

We have a range of external stakeholders including gas consumers, our employees, supplers and
contractors, our regulator Ofgem and local governments and communities We adopt an open and
constructive approach, both in terms of the way we operate, the services we provide and the impact
that our activities have on each of our stakeholders We encourage and enable our employees to be
active citizens in the communities In which they live and work, through schemes which support staft
who are etther raising money for, or giving therr time to, UK chanties, local community or youth
sports groups We match ehigible fund raising by indwidual membaers of staff

Key performance indicators

We measure the achievement of our objectives through the use of quantitative assessments, and
where guanttative measures are less relevant through the use of quailatve assessments The
principal key performance indicators {"KPI's™) which we use to assess whether we have achieved our
principal operating objectives are set out below

Year ended Year ended
Key performance 31 March 31 March
indicator Description 2007 2006
Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation
EBITDA' and goodwill amortisation £116 7 million  £153 8% million
. EBITDA excluding replacement
Adjusted EBITDA expenditure £291 4 million  £277 4> million
Capital expenditure Additions to tangible fixed assets £120.4 midlion  £109 2° million
Replacement The cost of planned maintenance of mains
expenditure and services £174 7 millon  £123 6% mullion
Debt to RAV ratio® The Group's debt to RAV ratio 71.6% 73 9%
Employee lost ime Incidents resulting in employees taking
incidents time off work (per 100,000 hours worked) 0.1 025’
Sertous or potentially  Number of serious or potentially serious
sernous RTA's road traffic accidents per 100 vehicles,
where the Group's driver 1s deemed to be .
at fault 0.39 065
Customer Results from customer satisfaction
satisfaction surveys (5 = very satisfied) - planned
interruptions 3 95° 393°
Customer Results from customer satisfaction
satisfaction surveys (5 = very satisfied} — unptanned
interruptions 3 99° 3 98°
Proportion of uncontrolled escapes
Escapes attendance  4nended in one hour — percentage (target
97%) 97 4 97 9

1 EBITDA 15 a non-statutory meastire, and 1s calculated by adding back goodwill amorhisation and deprecration to

operating profit

2 10 month trading penod ended 31 March 2006

3 “RAV"s defined as Ofgem Regulatory Asset Value of the Southern and Scotland networks plus additions in excess
of current allowances expected to be recovered in future penods Debt for the purposes of the Debt to RAV ratio
excludes shareholders’ loans and habilties ansing from denvative financial instruments The percentages stated ara
as at 31 March 2007 and 31 March 2006 raspectively

4 12 month penod ended 31 March 2006

5 Based on customer satisfaction survey reports obtained for the nine month penod ended 31 December 2006 for the
Southern and Scotland networks

5




Scotia Gas Networks plc

In considenng our financial performance we use EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA EBITDA s
calculated by adding back goodwill amortisation and depreciation, which are non-cash costs, from
operating profit Adjusted EBITDA Is calculated by adding back goodwill amortisation, depreciation
and 100% of replacement expenditure to operating profit Replacement expenditure which, under our
UK GAAP accounting policy, 1s wntten off to the profit and loss account as a charge to operating
profit as it 1s incurred, improves the future safety and reliabiity of the networks through the
replacement of older gas pipes with modern pipes Ofgem treats 50% of projected replacement
expendiure as recoverable dunng the year and 50% as recoverable over future years Accordingty,
we believe the use of these adjusted measures best illustrates the underlying performance of the
business

Resources

Our pnncipal resources are our assets and our people

Our distnbution networks comprise approximately 74,000 kilometres of gas mains, together with
associated services, plant and machinery and storage faciities

We directly employed 3,442 people at 31 March 2007 (At 31 March 2006 2,390) We place
considerable value on the involvement of employees and have continued to keep them informed on
matters affecting them as employees and on the various factors affecting the performance of the
Group dunng the year We continue to invest in the development and training of our people in order
to ensure both indwvidual developmental needs and business skill requirements are met

Financial review

We set out below our financial review for the year ended 31 March 2007 The comparative figures
presented are for the ten month trading period ended 31 March 2006, as reported in the audited
financial statements, unless otherwise stated In certain instances, which are highlighted, the figures
for the twelve month penod ended 31 March 2006 for the network companies Southern Gas
Networks pic and Scotland Gas Networks plc have been presented in order to provide a more
meaningful comparnson Such information 1s based on the financial information for the distribution
networks for the two months ended 31 May 2005 when they were owned by Transco plc and the ten
months ended 31 March 2006 when they were owned by Scotia Gas Networks plc

Turnover for the year ended 31 March 2007 was £594 6 million (ten month trading period ended 31
March 2006 £522 0 millon) The majonty of turnaver 1s earned from charges made for the prowvision
of gas transportation capacity as well as revenue based upon gas volumes transported in the year
During the year the Group transported 162 3 TWh of gas across the two networks, compared to
185 2 TWh in the corresponding twelve month penod to 31 March 20086, representing a like for like
reduction in volumes of 12% This reduction in volumes has had the effect of reducing our reported
turnover compared to the prior pernod The principal reasons for this are a combination of
significantly warmer than average weather at the same tirme as record levels of wholesale gas pnces
and a growing awareness of energy efficiency which have led to demand destruction

Adjusted EBITDA for the year ended 31 March 2007 was £291 4 million (ten month trading period
ended 31 March 2006 £277 4 miliony Dunng the year, the Group has continued to expenence
significant cost pressures in respect of the purchase of shrinkage gas due to high average gas prices
durning the year These cost pressures, together with reduced transportation volumes and revenues
have reduced Adjusted EBITDA for the year compared to the equwalent twelve month period in the
prior year Adjusted EBITDA 1s calculated by adding back goodwill amortisation of £8 4 million
(2006 £8 2 million), depreciation of £75 4 million (2006 £65 3 mtlhon) and replacement expenditure
of £174 7 million (2006 £123 6 million) to reported operating profit of £31 @ milion (2006 £80 3
milkion) Replacement expenditure i1s higher this year as we have carnied out more planned metallic
mains replacement, as part of our major replacement programme, compared to the prior year

Loss for the year before taxation amounted to £170 7 million {year ended 31 March 2006 loss of
£293 1 miilion) and loss for the year after taxation amounted to £154 8 million (year ended 31 March
2006 loss of £233 9 milhon) The loss before taxation in the prior year included an exceptional loss
of £205 0 million ansing from the matching out of interest rate swap positions relating to short term
acquisition funding (see note 16)
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The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividends for the year ended 31 March 2007
(2006 £nil)

Treasury policies and capital structure

The Group’s operations are financed by a combination of equity and loans from shareholders, bank
borrowings and long term bonds The Group’s funding and hquidity are managed within a framework
of policies and guidelines authonsed by the Board of Directors Further details are set out in the
Directors’ Report on pages 12 and 13

QOur key treasury policies are that our debt to RAV ratio for the regulated businesses does not
exceed 77 5% and that we maintain a minimum of 75% of debt, excluding shareholders’ loans, at
either fixed rates of interest or index linked In accordance with these pclicies we have set a target
interest rate profile for long term borrowings, excluding shareholders’ loans, of between 80 and 85%
of borrowings at either fixed rate or index linked Interest rate swaps are used, where necessary, In
order to achieve this desired profile

Financial position

As at 31 March 2007, the Group's total debt (before 1ssue costs), excluding shareholders’ loans and
habilities ansing from denvative financial instruments, amounted to £2,350 4 milion (31 March 2006
£2.219 8 milhen} and the debt to RAV ratic was 71 6% (31 March 2006 73 9%) Of the total long
term borrowings at 31 March 2007, excluding shareholders’ loans and after taking into account the
effect of interest rate swaps, 81 5% were at erther fixed rates of interest or were index linked {31
March 2006 81 3%)

Capital expenditure dunng the year amounted to £120 4 million (ten month trading period ended 31
March 2006 £109 2 million) Capital expenditure 1s incurred to ensure that the networks continue to
operate at minmum agreed pressures and that sufficient storage capacity 1s avallable to meet
instances of peak demand, as well as when new connections or increased capacity are added to the
networks

In accordance with FRS 17 (Retirement benefits) our balance sheet includes a pension habihty, net
of related deferred tax, of £46 9 millon (31 March 2006 £41 4 million} The net pension hability
increased as a result of the latest actuanal valuation carried out by the scheme’s actuary as at 31
March 2006, which was completed during the course of the year The Group has agreed to increase
the company contribution rate to 37 3% (from 23 3%) with effect from 1 Aprl 2007 Additionally, the
Group has agreed to make special pension contnbutions to repar the deficit amounting to £13 5
million per year from 1 Apnl 2007

Liquidity and cash flows

Liquidity 1s maintained through a mixture of long term borrowings and short term hguid funds in order
that there are sufficient funds available for the Group’s current and planned operations Committed
facilities are in place in order to provide funding for future capital and replacement expenditure as
well as to provide us with sufficient avallable facilities to meet the seasonal working capital
requiremnents of the Group We expect to 1ssue further long term borrowings durnng the year ending
31 March 2008 to fund capital and replacement expenditure programmes At 31 March 2007 our
committed undrawn working capital facility amounted to £105 0 million (31 March 2006 £1050
milion} This facility expires in October 2010

Net cash inflow from operating activities for the year amounted to £139 3 million {ten month trading
period ended 31 March 2006 £175 9 milhon) The reduction 1s principally due to the increase in our
replacement expenditure during the year The net cash outflow from returns on investments and
servicing of finance was £151 8 millon (2006 £73 9 milhen) with the increase atiributable to the
timing of penodic interest payments following the 1ssue of long term borrowing in October 2005 Net
cash outflow for capital expenditure and financial investment was £110 9 milion (2006 £65 3 million)
reflecting an increased level of capital expenditure dunng the year compared to the previous percd
Net cash outflow for acquisitions was £44 3 million (2006 £691 9 millon) which represents the
payment of deferred consideration in the year in respect of the acquisittons of Southern Gas
Networks plc and Scotland Gas Networks plc in the previous year Overall, after taking into account
movements In short term deposits and financing items, cash increased by £16 2 million in the year
{2006 decrease of £25 0 million)
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Dwvidend policy

Our policy 1s to distnibute to shareholders any availlable surplus funds, after taking into account the
cash requirements needed to continue to invest In the business and the Group’s level of geanng, and
subject to the availability of distributable profits

Accounting policies

The Group's accounting policies are set out in note 1 to the financial statements These accounting
policies have been applied consistently during the year and in the preceding year, and as previously
highhighted in this report our operating profit 1s stated atter wnting off our expenditure on replacement
expenditure during the year

Operational review

Organisational development

During the year, the decision we made last year to replace our existing functionally-based structure
with a geographically-based structure was successfully implemented This has enabled a more local
and customer-focused management of the business's operations which we believe has led to
improved customer service, as demonstrated by a reduction in customer complaints received, and
has laid the foundations to achieve future sustainable cost savings We also carry out quarterly
postal customer satisfaction surveys covenng both planned (replacement) and unplanned
{emergency and repair) work which we use to further assess our quality of service performance The
resuits of the surveys are highlighted on page 5

We have also agreed a revised pay agreement with our employees dunng the year This promotes
stability and consistency, helps develop our culture and dentity and 1s an integral part of our goal to
own the most efficient, safest and customer-focused gas distrbution companies in the UK

Additionally, to support our replacement expenditure pragramme and other activities In the most
efficient way possible, we have as planned, brought more of our work in-house within the Group by
In-sourcing contracting and connections servicas praviously supplied by third party contractors
Those services which have been brought in-house are now provided by the Group’s wholly owned
subsidiaries, SGN Contracting Limited and SGN Connections Limited We have also recently
estabhished SGN Commercial Services Limited, which in the next financial year will commence its
activities in providing services In the competitive market

Information systems

A major reform of our front office systems 1s also well underway, which have replaced existing legacy
systems inhented from National Grnd Gas plc with 11 integrated systems designed to support the
business This represents a significant investment which has enhanced the operational functionality
of our systems in a number of key areas and has reduced the number of Interfaces and duphication
of data held within our systems In addition, signdficant investrment has been made in enhancing data
gualty and security with extensive vabdation and error checking built into the new systems and
transmission of mobie data 1s encrypted to protect the data secunty of our customers Modermn
secunty and virus management measures and intrusion protections have also been mplemented
representing a significant enhancement to those built into the legacy systems We believe this
investment in information systems will enable standards of customer service, safety and operationat
efficiency to be improved We have also ensured the new systems have i built flexibility to ensure
future upgrades can be delivered in an efficient manner

We continue to receive corporate and management services from Scottish and Southern Energy plc,
which has ensured synergies are maximised

Safety
Injury performance
The Group's over-nding goal 1s to distnbute gas safely and reliably and we work hard to ensure a

safe workplace for our workforce with everyone stnving towards eliminating imyuries  This year we
have reduced our lost time injury performance rate to 0 21 injunies per 100,000 hours (2006 0 25}
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With the Group having successfully achieved targets set for 2006/2007 we are setting the bar even
higher with the aim to reduce all injuries to 0 18 per 100,000 hours over the next twelve months and
ultimately to zero

The Group also achieved a Royal Society for the Prevention of Accidents Occupational Health and
Safety gold award, awarded to recognise and celebrate the achievement of a very high standard of
health and safety at work

Road traffic accidents

The Group recognises that dnving I1s a potentially dangerous activity that many of its employees
undertake on a daily basis Therefore to improve performance in the area of road traffic accidents,
the Group sought to analyse the information available to learn from this and formulated a Driving
Safely Campaign From the information gathered by the additional reporting of road traffic accidents
and the in-depth investigation of these accidents the Group has been able to communicate the
1Issues and highlight hazardous driving behaviours to our employees We are now making good
progress In reducing road traffic accidents, having reduced the number of senous or potentially
serious road traffic accidents where the Group's driver 1s at fault by 40% dunng 2006/2007

Gas mains replacement programme

We have, 1n agreement with our regulator Ofgem and the Heath and Safety Executive ("HSE"),
embarked on an extensive safety led programme of gas mains replacement across our networks to
replace all won pipes that are located within 30 metres of any property, which includes the
replacement of the individual services connecting the premises to the mains network We have a
considerable amount of work to carry out and appreciate that this will nevitably cause some
disruption However, the polyethylene pipes we are putting in the ground now, If left undisturbed,
have a Wfespan of at least BO years, so when the work 1s complete people will be able to enjoy
security of supply from a distnbution infrastructure perspective for many years to come In the year
ended 31 March 2007 we have increased our investment in replacement activities to £174 7 million,
an increase of 16% compared to the equivalent twelve month penod ended 31 March 2006

We are committed to working closely with the local authonties and police to plan our work so that it
causes the mimimum amount of disruption to residents, road users, businesses and traders
Wherever possible we will also be using modern minimmum-dig techniques which allow us to lay gas
mains without digging lengthy trenches in the road, causing less impact on the environment and on
the local communities

Gas escapes standards of service

Our engineers respond to reports of suspected gas leaks 24 hours a day, 365 days a year,
regardless of who people buy ther gas from Our engineers aim to attend all uncontrolled gas
escapes within one hour and all controlled gas escapes within two hours A controlled gas escape 1S
one where the person reporting st has confirmed that the gas emergency control valve serving the
premises has been turned off and the smell of gas has gone An uncontrolled gas escape covers all
others

The Board of Directors has established a Safety, Health and Environmental Advisory Committee
which 1s responsible for monitoring the Group’s health and safety performance and ensuring that the
health and safety policy statement 1s adhered to The Committee provides the Board of Directors
with reports on any key areas identified

Environment

The Group 1s committed to the protection and enhancement of the environment and consideration for
the environment 1s a feature of all our business activities We are always looking for new ways to
minimise the environmental impact of our activities

We constantly benchmark our environmental performance, allowing us to identfy new opportunities,
share best practice and achieve continual improvements Dunng the year a number of employee
briefings, campaigns and traimng events were held with the specific aim of increasing our
employees’ knowledge and awareness of environmental matters, as well as health and safety
1s5ues

9
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This process of continual development provides our staff with the information and competence they
need to recogruse and manage all significant environmental 1ssues, rnisks, incidents and opportunities
which they are faced with, thereby proactively avoiding pollution to land, air or water and protecting
or enhancing our environment

As part of our commitment to the environment we also work in parnership with conservation
charities, schools and a wide range cf community groups The Board of Directors has established a
Safety, Health and Enwvironmental Adwvisory Committee which 1s responsible for monitonng the
Group's environmental performance and ensuring that the environmental policy statement 1s adhered
to The Committee provides the Board of Directors with reports on any key areas identfied

OCur targets for 2006/2007 included reducing methane emissions through leakage and active
pressure management, reducing paper usage wn our offices and operational sites, reducing
commercial fuel usage and reducing our impact on the environment through reusing excavated
matenals and reducing the use of virgin aggregate Progress to date has been postive

We are developing a dynamic environmental strategy and ten year plan which can be revised to
meet changes n internal or external policy or public / industry expectations as and when necessary
In hne with our ambition to achieve environmental excellence, we will go beyond legislative
complance by seeking to meet internationally accepted good practice wherever we operate This 1s
reflected 1n our achievements dunng 2006/2007 and our retention of 1ISO 14001 (environmental
management system standard) which 1s itself a recognition of continuously reducing our impact on
the environment We will be setling equally challenging environmental objectives and targets for
2007 and 2008 in accordance with our environmental strategy and ten year environmental
improvement plan

Future developments
Regulation

The Group 1s currently engaged in a process with Ofgem which will determine revenues and
allowances for the next five years (commencing 1 Apnl 2008)

Investment

Longer-term pricnties include continued major replacement investment to replace metallic mains with
polyethylene mains, a programme which has been developed in consultation with the HSE and
Ofgem In addition, continued major investment to upgrade the gas network 1s expected in order to
meet instances of peak demand The efficient and economic delivery of this capital investment will
further increase the Group's RAV

Further details

Further details on the long term development plans of Southern Gas Networks plc and Scotland Gas
Networks plc can be found in each company's long term development staternent published in
accordance with Special Condition D3 of its Gas Transporter Licence and avallable on the Group's
website www scotiagasnetworks co uk  Our long term development plan sets out the forecast gas
demand over the ten year penod and outhnes our capital investment plans which are required to
ensure the continued operation of the networks in accordance with our icence conditions

Approved by the Board of Directors and signed on its behalf by

P

Colin W Hood

Director
2o July 2007
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Directors’ report
for the year ended 31 March 2007

The Directors present therr report and the audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2007 The financial statements consolidate the financial statements of the Company
and ts subsidiary undertakings (together the “Group”)

The comparative period presented 1s the year ended 31 March 2006, which includes a ten month
trading penod to 31 March 2006 ansing from the acquisitions of Southern Gas Networks plc and
Scotland Gas Networks plc on 1 June 2005

Principal activities

The Company’s principal activity 1s to act as an investment holding company and it does not trade

The Group’s principal activity 1s the development, admwustration, maintenance and operation of the
Southern and Scotland regional gas distribution systems and the supply of transportation services It
will continue in this activity for the foreseeable future

Review of business

The review of business for the year, including an analysis using key performance indicators, together
with a descnption of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group are set out in the operating
and financial review on pages 2 to 10

Future developments

The Group’s longer-term prionties Include continued major replacement investment to replace
metaliic mains with polyethylene mains, a programme which has been developed in consultation with
the Health and Safety Executive and the Office of Gas and Electncity Markets (“Ofgem”) In addition,
continued major Investment to upgrade the gas networks 1s expected in order to meet instances of
peak demand The efficient and economic delivery of this capital investment will further increase the
Group’s Regulated Asset Value (the regulated asset value atinbuted to each of the Distribution
Networks by Ofgem)

The Group I1s currently engaged in a process with Ofgern which will determine revenues and
allowances for the next five years (commencing 1 Apnl 2008)

Results and dividends

The consolidated profit and loss account s set out on page 24

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividends for the year ended 31 March 2007
(2006 £nil)
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Directors

The Directors of the Company who served during the year ended 31 March 2007, all of whom have
been directors for the whole of the year, except where noted, are listed below

Gregor Alexander
Tanya M Covassin

Stephen Dowd {appointed 24 November 2006)
Colin W Hood

Graham G Juggins (resigned 21 July 2006)
Ronald K Lepin {resigned 24 November 2006)
Robert McDonald (appointed 21 July 2006)
James McPhilimy

Michae! Nobrega (resigned 10 March 2007)
Sebastien B Sherman {appointed 10 March 2007)
Robert Watters

Directors’ interests

None of the Directors who held office at the end of the year had an interest in the shares or loan
stock of the Company or any other Group undertaking at the end of the financial year, or at any time
dunng the financial year subsequent to their appointment as a director of the Company

Directors’ indemnity

The Company has purchased and maintained throughout the financial year directors’ and officers’
hability insurance in respect of all Group companies, their Directors and senior officers

Financial risk management

The Group's funding, iquidity and exposure to interest rate and foreign exchange rnsks are managed
within a framework of policies and guidelines authonsed by the Board of Directors

Interest rate nisk

The Group has interest bearing habilities, and it 1s the Group’s policy to maintain a target interest rate
profile for long term borrowings of between B0 and 85% of borrowings at either fixed rate or index
hnked, excluding borrowings from shareholders The Group uses interest rate swaps, where
necessary, in order to achieve this desired profile

Liquidity rnisk

The Group maintains a mixture of long term funding and short term liquid funds in order that there
are sufficient funds available for the Group's current and planned operations

Foreign exchange risk

The Group has certain borrowings denominated in Eures  In accordance with the Group’s policy,
cross currency swaps have been used to fully hedge the Euro denominated borrowings into Sterling
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Credit risk

Credit nsk is managed through the Uniform Network Code, part of the regulatory framework applying
to the gas business in the UK Under the Network Code, all shippers must obtain a Code Credit Limit
from the gas distnbution networks prior to the commencement of trading The Code Credit Rules
describe how that hmit 1s determined, the secunty that the Group may require from a shipper to
support its Code Credit Limut and the process the Group will use to monitor utiisation against that
et

Pricing risk

The Group’s transportation charges are subject to price control formulae set within the regulatory
regime The Group's maximum allowed revenue th a given price penod 1s dependent upon a number
of factors that are not known in advance {such as actual transportation volumes) and therefore the
maximum allowed annual revenue 15 not known unt! the end of the relevant period However,
transportation tariffs are set on a prospective basis based upon expected transportation volumes, so
actual revenue received or recevable in any one year may differ from the maxmum allowed
revenue Where revenues received or receivable differ from the maximum allowed annual revenue,
adjustments are made to future prices to reflect this over or under recovery

Charitable contributions

The Group made charitable donations of £32,100 in the year {year ended 31 March 2006 £4,400}) in
suppert of community and employee intiatives across its operatons There were no political
donations in either the current or prior year

Employees

The Group places censiderable value on the involvement of its employees and has continued to
keep them informed on matters affecting them as employees and on the vanous factors affecting the
Group Participaton by employees generally 1s encouraged through team meetings, briefings, an
Internal magazine and an intranet site Employee representatives are consulted regularly on a wide
range of matters affecting their current and future interests

Applications for employment by disabled persons are always fully considered, bearing in mind the
aptitudes of the applicant concerned In the event of members of staff becoming disabled, every
effort 1s made to ensure their employment within the Group continues and that appropnate training
and development 1s arranged It s the policy of the Group that the training, career development and
promotion of disabled persons should, as far as possible, be identical to that of other employees

Creditors payment policy

The Group's current policy concerning the payment of its creditors and other suppliers 1s to

* agree the terms of payment with those creditors/suppliers when agreeing the terms of each
transaction,

« ensure that those creditors/suppliers were made aware of the terms of payment by inclusion of
the relevant terms in contracts, and

* pay in accordance with its contractual and other legal obligations

The payment policy applies to all payments to creditors/suppliers for revenue and capital supplies of
goods and services without exception

The following disclosures for creditor days relate only to trade creditors as required by the
Companies Act 1985 At 31 March 2007, the Group had an average of 34 days (2006 39 days)
outstanding in its trade creditors  The Company has not traded in either the current or prior year and
accordingly has no trade creditors
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Auditors

Each of the Directors at the date of this report confirms that

1) so far as the Director 1s aware, there 15 no relevant audit information of which the Company's
auditors are unaware, and

2) the Director has taken all the steps that hefshe ought to have taken as a Director to make
himself/herself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company's auditors
are aware of that information

This confirmation 1s given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provision of section
2347A of the Companies Act 1985

Deloitte & Touche LLP have expressed therr willingness to continue in office as auditors and a
resolution to reappomt them will be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting

By Order of the Board

L

Colin W Hood
Director
Ao July 2007
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Corporate governance statement

The Board of Directors 1s committed to the highest standards of corporate governance and believes
that strong governance \mproves the performance of the business and enhances shareholder value
This report sets out the key governance principles and practices of the Company and of the Group

As an unhsted company, Scotia Gas Networks plc 1s not subject to the UK Financial Reporting
Council's Combined Code on Corporate Governance (the “Combined Code”), and the Board of
Directors does not believe that all of the guidance set out in the Combined Code 1s applicable to the
Company This statement sets out those areas within the Combined Code which the Board of
Cirectors beheve to be applicable to the Company

Organisation and structure

On 1 June 2005, the Company acquired the entire share capital of Southern Gas Networks Limited
and Scotland Gas Networks Limited These companies had acquired the trade and assets of the
Southern and Scotland region gas distnbution networks respectively from their then parent, Transco
plc, on 1 May 2005 (Transco plc subsequently changed its name to National Gnd Gas plc)
Southern Gas Networks Limited and Scotland Gas Networks Limited subsequently re-registered as
public lmited companies and changed their names to Southern Gas Networks plc and Scotland Gas
Networks plc respectively

The Company 15 owned by a consortium consisting of Scottish and Southern Energy plec {50%),
OTPPB Investments (UK) Limited {25%), which s owned by Ontano Teachers' Pension Plan Board
and Boreals Infrastructure Europe (UK) Limited (25%) which 1s indirectly wholly owned by the Ontanio
Municipal Employees Retirement System

The Board of Directors i1s the same for the Company and its subsidianes Scotland Gas Networks plc,
Southern Gas Netwoarks plc, SGN Contracting Limited and SGN Connections Limited

As a commercial Jjoint venture, the composition of the Board of Directors reflects the above
shareholders’ interests in the consortium  Each of the Directars 15 an employee of a shareholder or an
affilate of a shareholder of the Company As the relattonship of the shareholders 1s governed by the
Shareholders' and Governance Agreement, any conflict of interest in the position of the Directors
would be addressed in accordance with the provisions of the Shareholders' and Governance
Agreement Directors are nominated to the Board of Directors in accordance with the terms of the
Shareholders’ and Governance Agreement The Directors have been briefed on the duties that will be
conferred on them under the Compames Act 2006

Board Membership

The Board consists of seven non-executive Directors in addition to the non-executive Chairman
Durnng the year, there were a number of changes to the composition of the Board Graham Juggins
stood down as a Board member on 21 July 2006 and Robert McDonald joined the Board on that date
Stephen Dowd joined the Board on 24 November 2006 to replace Ronald Lepin who departed on that
date On 10 March 2007 Michaei Nobrega stood down to be replaced by Sebastien Sherman

Chairman

The Articles of Association allow the Board to appoint one of their number as Chairman At the 10 May
2005 beard meeting Colin Hood was appointed Chairman for a two year penod starting on that date
At the 24 May 2007 board meeting Colin Hood was re-appointed as Charrman for a further one year
period from that date
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Chief Executive and Senior Executives

The Board of Directors 15 compnsed entirely of non-executive Directors Executive responsibility
rests jointly with John Morea, Chief Operating Officer (*COO"} and Surinder Toor, Chief Financial
Officer (*CFO") and as such, it 1s considered that no Chief Executive 1s required The COOQO and CFO
are each employed by the Group and are not Directors of the Company They are supported by an
executive committee which meets on a monthly basis and are responsible for managing the
operations of the business

Biographical details for all the Directors and Senior Executives are shown on page 20

Timeliness and quality of Board information

The Board of Directors meets regularly and has a schedule of matters specifically reserved to 1t for
decision and has in place policies setting out which decisions are taken by the Board of Directors and
which may be delegated to management The Board has sought to ensure that Directors are properly
briefed on 1ssues ansing at board meetings by estabhshing procedures for distnbuting board papers
one week in advance of meetings, considenng the adequacy of the information prowded before
making decisions, adjourning meetings or deferning decisions when Directors have concerns about the
information avallable to them and making the Company Secretary responsible to the Board for the
timeliness and qualty of information Al Directors have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary

During the year, the Chairman conducted a comprehensive evaluation of the performance of the
Board, its three Committees and indvidual Directors The Chairman then discussed these matters
which each Director and the Company Secretary during a senes of individual meetings The outcome
was that generally the Board set clear objectives, it momitored performance well and was focused on
the correct areas This review will continue to be carned out on an annual basis

Internal controls

The Board of Directors 18 ultimately responsible for the Group's system of internal control and for
reviewing its effectiveness along with the review of nsk management processes The Group’s system
of internal control and embedded nsk management, which has been n place throughout the year,
helps to safeguard the assets and 1s designed to manage, rather than eliminate, matenal rsks to the
achievement of the business objectives These reviews recognise that any such system can provide
only reasonable, and not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss

Accordingly, the Directors have regard to what controls, in therr judgement, are appropnate to the
business, to the matenality of the nisks inherent in the business, and to relative costs and benefits of
imptementing specific controls

Control 1s maintained through an organisation structure with clearly defined responsibilities, authonty
levels and lines of reporting, the appointment of suitably qualfied staff in specialised business areas,
and continuing investment in ligh quahty information systems These methods of control are subject to
penodic review as to their implementation and continued suitabihty

Internal audit

The Board of Directors has estabhished the scope of the internal audit funchon which 1s responsible
for reviewing the effectiveness of the Group's systems of internal control and reports 1o the Audit
Committee of the Board The internal audit manager reports to the Audit Comrmuttee on the audit
programme, progress agamst the programme and any follow-up actions
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Board Committees

The Board has three commiitees that meet regularly The Company Secretary acts as secretary at
each of these committees

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has terms of reference which sets out its pnncipal responsibilities These are

. ensurnng that the financial reports represent an accurate, clear and balanced assessment of the
Group’s position and prospects,

. monitoning the adequacy and effectiveness of financial reporting, internal controls and risk
management systems for the identification, assessment and reporting of nisks,

. monitoring and reviewing the internal audit function,

. making recommendations to the Board of Directors relating to the appointment, reappointment
and removal of the external auditors,

. reviewing the effectiveness of the external audit process, and

* reviewing audit and non-audit fees and services provided by the auditors and ensuring the

provision of non-audit services do not impair the independence of the external auditor

As part of its activities, the Audit Committee reviews and approves key regulatory filings prior to their
1Issue to Ofgem

The membership of the Committee 1s as follows
. Robert Watters (Committee Chairman)

. Gregor Alexander

. Stephen Dowd

Ron Lepin resigned from the Board on the 24 November 2006 and Stephen Dowd joined the Board on
that date This change I1s also reflected in the membership of the Audit Committee

The Chairman of the Audit Committee reports to the Board of Directors following each committee
meeting on the main areas and subjects the Committee has reviewed such as nsk management,
internal control, internal audit reports and any 1ssues ansing from its review of the financial statements

The Audit Committee meets at least three times a year and at least once a year the Committee's
performance, constitulion and terms of reference 1s reviewed to ensure it 1s operating effectively The
Beard considers that the membership of the Audit Committee as a whole has sufficient recent and
relevant financial expenence to discharge its functions Gregor Alexander has particular relevant
financial experience In his executive career Currently he 1s the Finance Director of Scottish and
Scuthern Energy plc
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Satety, Health and Environmental Advisory Committee

The Safety, Health and Environmental Advisory Committee 1s responsible to the Board of Directors
for

. Being assured that the health and safety policy statement and environmental policy
statement are being adhered to,

. Setting of health and safety, and environmental targets to smprove the Group's performance,

. Monitoning health and safety and environmental performance against planned targsts and

identified key improvement areas, and

. Encouraging greater awareness of the importance of health, safety and the environment and
higher achievement in satety and environmental performance

The membership of the Committee is as follows

. James McPhillimy {Committee Chairman)
. Tanya Covassin

. Sebastien Sherman

) John Morea (COQ)

) Steve Gay (Head of Operations)

Michae! Nobrega resigned from the Board on 10 March 2007 and Sebastien Sherman joined the
Board on that date This change 1s also reflected in the membership of the Safety, Health and
Environmental Advisory Committee

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee has terms of reference which sets out its principal responsibiiities
These are

. To determine and agree with the Board of Directors the Group's framework or broad policy for
executive and senior management remuneration The Committee shall have delegated authonty
for setting the remuneration of the COO, CFQ and therr direct reponts, and

. To review the ongoing appropriateness and relevance of the remuneration policy

The membership of the Committee I1s as follows

. James McPhillmy {Committee Chairman})
. Tanya Covassin
. Sebastien Sherman

Michael Nobrega resigned from the Board on 10 March 2007 and Sebastien Sherman joined the
Board on that date Ttis same change i1s also reflected in the membership of the Remuneration
Committee
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Directors’ remuneration

The Directors did not receive any remuneration for their services to the Company, or to the Group,
dunng the year ended 31 March 2007 or in the prior year Accordingly there 1s no further information
disclosed

Membership and attendance

The attendance of the Board of Directors and the Board committees during the year s as set out
below

Safety,

Health and

Remuneration Environmental

Audit Committee Committee Committee

Board meetings meetings meetings meetings

Attended Possible Attended Possible Attended Possible Attended Possible

Gregor Alexander 6 6 6 6 - - - -
Tanya M Covassin 6 6 14 - 2 2 2 3
Stephen Dowd * 3 3 1 2 - - - -
Colin W Hood 6 6 - - - - - -
Graham G Juggins ** 2 2 - - - - - -
Ronald K Lepin ** 3 3 4 4 - - - -
Robert McDonald * 4 4 - - - - - .
James McPhillimy 6 6 18 - 2 2 3 3
Michael Ncbrega ** 4 5 - - 1 1 2 3
Sebastien Sherman * 1 1 - - - 1 - -
Robert Watters 6 6 5 3] - - - -

* Robert McDonald, Stephen Dowd and Sebastien Sherman were appointed to the Board on 21 July
2008, 24 November 2006 and 10 March 2007 respectively

** Graham Juggins, Ronald Lepin and Michael Nobrega resigned from the Board on 21 July 2006, 24
November 2006 and 10 March 2007 respectively

A Standing in for Stephen Dowd
® Standing In for Robert Watters

Going concern

The Directors consider that the Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for
the foreseeable future The financial statements are therefore prepared on the going concern basis
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Directors’ and Senior Executives’ biographies and responsibilities

Colin Hood, Chairman
Colin was appomnted Chairman of SGN in May 2005 He 1s Chief Operating Officer of Scottish and
Southern Energy plc and 1s also a Fellow of the Institute of Engineenng and Technology

Gregor Alexander, Director

Gregor joined the Board of SGN at its inception He 1s Finance Director of Scottish and Southern
Energy plc and previcusly worked with the accountancy firm Arthur Andersen He 1s also a member of
the Audit Committee

Tanya Covassin, Director

Tanya joined the Board of SGN at its nception She 1s Director, Infrastructure at Ontano Teachers'
Penston Plan Board Tanya 1s a member of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the
Safety, Health and Environmental Advisory Committee

Stephen Dowd, Director
Stephen joined the Board of SGN in November 2006 He s Vice President, Infrastructure at Ontano
Teachers' Pension Plan Board Stephen 1s a member of the Audit Committee

Robert McDonald, Director
Robert joined the Board of SGN in July 2006 He 1s Director of Regulation at Scottish and Scuthern
Energy plc and has previously worked with the industries’ regulatory bady

James McPhillimy, Director

Jim joined the Board of SGN at its inception He 1s Director of Human Resources at Scottish and
Southern Energy plc  Jim 1s Charman of the Remuneration Commitiee as well as Chairman of the
Safety, Heaith and Environmental Advisory Committee

Sebastien Sherman, Director

Sebastien joined the Board of SGN 1in March 2007 He 1s Vice President at Borealis Infrastructure
Management Sebastien 1s a member of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the Safety,
Health and Environmental Advisory Committee

Robert Watters, Director

Robert joined the Board of SGN at its inception He 1s the Senior Vice President at Borealis
Infrastructure Management Robert 1s Chairman of the Audit Committee and a Chartered Accountant
having previously worked with an international accounting firm

John Morea, Chief Operating Officer

John joined SGN in May 2005 from Scottish and Southern Energy plc where he was Director of
Distnbution having previously been Head of Operations for Southern Electric plc  He has extensive
experience of elecincty distnbution, managing business change and delivening significant
improvements In business efficiency He has twice taken distnbution companies to the efficiency
frontier, with Southern Electnc plc in 1999 and Scottish and Southern Energy pic i 2004 John has
over 20 years experience within the utihties industry He 1s a companion of the Institute of Gas
Engineers and Managers, a member of the Institute of Engineering and Techneclogy and he holds a
MBA

Surinder Toor, Chief Financial Officer

Sunnder joined SGN in March 2005 from Amencan Electric Power where he was Managing Director of
European Operations having previcusly been Finance Director He oversaw the integration of
Fiddler's Ferry and Ferrybndge acquisitions and cost reduction programmes Prior to Amencan
Electnc Power, Surinder was a consultant in Arthur Andersen’s Energy and Utility Group focusing on
transaction support and nsk management Sunnder also previously held positions at Powergen plc
and Coopers & Lybrand He 1s a Chartered Accountant and holds a master's degree in Engineering,
Economics and Management

Ailsa Gray, Company Secretary

Ailsa joined the Board of SGN at its inception She 1s Deputy Company Secretary of Scotish and
Southern Energy plc
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Statement of Directors’ responsibilities

United Kingdom company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each
financial year which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group
as at the end of the tinancial year and of the profit or loss of the Group for that year In preparing
those financial statements, the Directors are required to

» select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
+ make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

» state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any matenal
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements, and

s prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it 1S nappropnate to
presume that the Company or Group will continue n business

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and the Group and enable them to
ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 1985 They are alsoc responsible
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps
for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularties
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Scotia Gas
Networks plc

We have audited the Group and parent company financial statements (the “financial staternents”) of
Scotia Gas Networks plc for the year ended 31 March 2007 which compnise the consolidated profit
and loss account, the consohdated statement of total recogmised gains and losses, the consolidated
and Company balance sheets, the consolidated cash flow statement, the reconciiation of net cash
flow to movement in net debt and the related notes 1 to 27 These financial stalements have been
prepared under the accounting policies set out therein

This report 1s made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, 1n accordance with section 235 of
the Companies Act 1985 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we rmight state to the
Company's members those matters we are reguired to state to them in an auditors’ report and for no
other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the Company and the Company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this
repont, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of Directors and auditors

The Directors' responsibiities for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) are set out in the statement of Directors’ responsibiliies

Our responsibility 1s to audit the financial statements in accordance with relevant United Kingdom
legal and regulatory requirements and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland)

We report to you our opinien as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view and are
propetly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 We also report to you whether in our
opinion the information given in the Directors' report 1s consistent with the financial statements

In addition we report to you if, in our apinion, the Company has not kept proper accounting records, if
we have not received all the information and explanations we require for aur audit, or if iInformation
specified by law regarding Directors' remuneration and other transactions is not disclosed

We read the other information contained n the Annual Report as described In the contents section,
and consider whether it 1s consistent with the audited financial statements We consider the
implications for our report f we become aware of any apparent misstatements or matenal
inconsistencies with the financial statements Our responsibilities do not extend to any further
information outside the Annual Report

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accerdance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland)
issued by the Auditing Practices Board An audit includes examination, on a test basss, of evidence
relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements It also includes an assessment
of the significant estimates and judgements made by the Directors in the preparation of the financial
statements, and of whether the accounting policies are approprate to the Group's and Company's
circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we
considered necessary In order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance
that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other
irregulanty or error In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the
presentation of information in the financial statements
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Opinion
In our opinion

. the financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Prachce, of the state of the Group's and the parent
Company's affairs as at 31 March 2007 and of the Group's loss for the year then ended,

. the financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act
1985, and
. the information given in the Directors’ report 1s consistent with the financial statements

D,elCMHL&# "Tg_\.ge.,\.xe L_(_/)

Deloitte & Touche LLP

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
London
2C July 2007
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Consolidated profit and loss account
for the year ended 31 March 2007

Year ended 31 March 2006

Year ended Before Excepttonal

31 March exceptional items
2007 ttems (note 4) Total
Notes £m £'m £'m £'m
Turnover 2 594 6 5220 - 5220
Net operating costs 3 {562.7) 441 7) - (441 7)
Operating profit 3 31.9 803 - 803
Income from fixed asset investments 12 03 - -
Interest recevable and similar income 6 4.3 56 - 56
Interest payable and similar charges 7 (207.2) {174 0) (2050) (3790)

Loss on ordinary activities before

taxation 4 (170.7) (88 1) (2050) (293 1)
Tax on loss on ordinary activities 8 159 (2 3) 615 592
Loss for the financial year 19 (154 8) (30 4) (143 5) (233 9)

The above results relate to conttnuing operations  In the prior year, the operating results arose
entirely from acquisitions during the year {see note 23)
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Consolidated statement of total recognised gains and losses

for the year ended 31 March 2007

Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March

2007 2006

Notes £'m £'m

Loss for the financial year 19 {154.8) (233 9)

Cash flow hedges (net of tax) 19 85 29

Actuanal loss on defined benefit pension scheme 26 (3.7) (50)
Movement on deferred tax relating to pension scheme 11

Total recognised losses for the year (148 9) (236 0)
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Balance sheets as at 31 March 2007

Group Company
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2007 2006 2007 2006
Notes £'m £'m £'m £'m
Fixed assets
Intangible assets - goodwill 10 464.5 4739 - -
Tangible assets 11 3,214.9 3,169 9 - -
Investments 12 0.2 02 948 4 948 4
3,6796 3,644 0 948.4 948 4
Current assets
Debtors 13 62.8 649 119.1 1019
Short term deposits 30.2 1323 302 132 3
93.0 197 2 1493 2342
Creditors: amounts falling due
within one year 14 {325 9) {269 1) (147.8) (198 2)
Net current {habihties)/assets {232.9) {71 9) 1.5 360
Total assets less current liabilities 34467 3,572 1 949 9 984 4
Creditors: amounts falling due
after more than one year 15 {2,785 2) (2,784 1) (563 6} (573 7)
Provisions for habilities 17 (479 2) {484 2) - -
Deterred income 11 (50 3) {28 4) - -
Net assets excluding pension
habilities 1320 2754 3863 4107
Defined benefit pension habilities 26 (46 9} (41 4) - -
Net assets including pension
habilities 851 2340 386 3 4107
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 18 470.0 4700 470.0 4700
Hedge reserve 19 1.4 29 - -
Profit and loss account 19 {396 3) (238 9) (837) {59 3)
Shareholders’ funds 20 851 2340 386 3 4107

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 2¢ July 2007 and were signed

on its behalf by

Ve 24 =y A

Colin W Hood Gregor Alexander
Director Director
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Consolidated cash flow statement
for the year ended 31 March 2007

Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March
2007 2006
Notes £'m £'m
Net cash inflow from operating activities 21 139.3 1759
Returns on investments and servicing of finance
Interest paid (153 6) (77 3)
Interest received 15 34
Dividends received from fixed asset itnvestments 03 -
Net cash outflow from returns on investments and
servicing of finance (151 8) (73 9)
Taxation 27 26.6 -
Capital expenditure and financial investment
Purchase of tangible fixed assets (133.6) (91 7}
Sale of tangible fixed assets 0.2 -
Customer contnbutions recerved 225 26 4
Net cash outflow for capital expenditure and
financial investment (110.9) {65 3}
Acquisitions
Purchase of subsidiary undertakings 23 {44.3) {691 9}
Net cash outflow for acquisitions (44 3) {631 9)
Net cash outflow before management of hiquid
resources and financing (141.1) (655 2)
Management of iquid resources
Decrease/(increase) in short term deposits 22 102.1 {132 3)
Net cash inflow/{outflow) from management of iquid
resources 1021 (132 3)
Financing
issue of ordinary share capital - 427 7
{Repayment)/drawdown of shareholders’ loans 22 (46 0) 5796
Issue of bonds - 2,2104
Repayment of other borrowings - (2,453 3)
Drawdown of bank borrowings 22 120.0 2,2500
Repayment of bank borrowings - {2,250 0)
Payments in respect of financial instruments 22 (18.8) -
Capital element of finance lease payments . (19)
Net cash inflow from financing 55.2 7625
Increase/{decrease) in cash 22 16 2 (25 0)
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Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net debt

Year ended  Year ended

31 March 31 March

2007 2006

Notes £'m £'m

Increasef{decrease) in cash in the year 16.2 (25 0)
{Decrease)/increase in short term deposits (102.1) 1323
Movement in borrowings (55.2) (334 8)
Change in net debt resulting from cash flows (141.1) (227 5)
Debt ansing from acquisitions - (2,453 3)
Finance leases acquired - (19
Other non-cash changes 22 {45 7) {192 3)
Net debt at beginning of year (2877 7) 27
Net debt at end of year 22 (3,064.5) (2,877 7)
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Scotia Gas Networks plc
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2007

1 Principal accounting policies

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with applicable accounting standards in
the United Kingdom and the Companies Act 1985

The financial statements of the Group present the results for the year ended 31 March 2007 The
comparative penod presented Is the year ended 31 March 2006, which includes a ten month trading
pernod to 31 March 2006 ansing from the acquisition of Southern Gas Networks plc and Scotland
Gas Networks plc by the Company on 1 June 2005

A summary of the more significant Group accounting palicies, which have been appled consistently
in both years, are as follows

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except that
assets and habiities were stated at far value when acquired, and certain dernvative financial
instruments are also recorded at fair value

Reclassification

Liabilities which have ansen from onerous financial instruments contracts (interest rate swaps) have
been classified within provisions for llabiities within the balance sheet (see notes 16 and 17 for
further detalls) The Directors consider that it 1s appropnate to record these obligations within
provisions for hiabilities as the obligation to make settlement payments on the swaps extend over a
number of years Previously, these amounts were recorded within creditors amounts falling due
within one year, and the balance sheet presentation in the prior year has accordingly been amended
far consistency of presentation

Basis of consolidation

The financial statements consolidate the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary
undertakings drawn up to 31 March each year Subsidiaries are those entities controlled by the
Group or the Company

Subsidianes acquired are consolidated in the financial statements of the Group from the date that
control commences until the date control ceases, using the acquisition method of accounting

Intra-group balances and any unreahsed gains and losses or income and expenses ansing from
intra-group transactions, are elimmated in preparing the consolidated financial statements

Turnover

Turnover 15 stated net of value added tax and is attrnbutable to the continuing activity of
transportation of naturat gas and the provision of related services Turnover includes an assessment
of transportation services supplied to customers between the date of the last meter reading and the
year end

Where revenues received or receivable differ from the amount permitted by regulatory agreements,
adjustments will be made to future prices to reflect this over or under recovery
Replacement expenditure

Replacement expenditure represents the cost of planned maintenance of mains and services assets
by replacing or iming sections of pipe This expenditure 1s principally undertaken to reparr and
maintain the safety of the network and 1s wntten off as incurred Expenditure that enhances the
performance of mains and services assets 1s treated as an addition to tangible fixed assets
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Taxation

Current tax, including UK corporation tax, 15 provided at amounts expected to be paid (or recovered)
using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date

Deferred tax 1s recogrused in respect of all iming differences that have onginated but not reversed at
the balance sheet date where transactions or events that result in an obligation to pay more or a night
to pay less tax in the future have occurred at the balance sheet date, with the following exceptions

* provision Is made for gains on disposal of fixed assets that have been rolled over nto
replacement assets only where, at the balance sheet date, there 15 a commitment to dispose
of the replacement assets with no likely subsequent rollover or avallable capital losses,

« provision 1s made for gains on revalued fixed assets only where there 1s a commitment to
dispose of the revalued assets and the attributable gain can neither be rolled over nor
eliminated by capital losses, and

* deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that the Directors consider that it 15
more likely than not that there will be suntable taxable profits from which the future reversal of
the underlying tuming difference can be deducted

Deferred tax 1s measured on an undiscounted basis

Intangible assets — goodwill

Goodwill 1s capitalised and amortised on a straight line basis to the profit and loss account over its
expected useful hfe  Goodwill represents the excess of the fair value of the consideration paid for
the acquisition of businesses over the fair value of the separable net assets acquired

The useful life of goodwill related to acquired businesses has been estimated to be 50 years

A review for impairment of goodwill 1s carned out at the end of each hinancial year Imparment
reviews compnse a companson of the carrying amount of the goodwill with its recoverable amount
(the higher of net realisable value and value in use) To the extent that the carrying amount exceeds
the recoverable amount, the goodwill 1Is iImpaired and an impairment loss Is recogrised in the profit
and loss account

Fixed asset investmenis

Fixed asset investments are stated at cost less a provision for any impairment in value Costs of the
investments include all costs directly related to the acquisition of the investments

Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less depreciation and any provision for impairment The cost
1s the purchase cost of the asset, together with any directly attnbutable costs of acquisiion In
respect of assets purchased as part of a business combination, the cost 1s the far value of the
assets acquired

The carrying values of tangible fixed assets are reviewed for impairment when events or changes n
circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable
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Depreciation 1s provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land, at rates calculated to
write off the cost of each asset evenly over its expected useful life, as follows

Freehold buildings Up to 50 years
Leasehold buildings Over the shorter of lease term and 50 years
Plant and machinery
Mains and services 60 to 80 years
Regulating equipment 30 to 50 years
Gas storage 40 years
Motor vehicles and office equipment 310 10 years

Grants and contributions

Capital grants and customer contributions in respect of additions to fixed assets are treated as
deterred income and released to the profit and loss account over the estimated useful lives of the
related assets

Revenue grants and contributions are credited to the profit and loss account in the year to which they
relate Deferred income In respect of revenue grants and contnbutions 1s included within creditors
amounts falling due within one year

Finance leases

Assets held under finance leases, which confer nghts and obligations similar to those attached to
owned assets, are capitalised as tangible fixed assets, and are depreciated over the shorter of the
lease terms and thewr useful lives The capital elements of future lease payments are recorded as
habihties, while the interest elements are charged to the profit and loss account

Operating leases

Rentals under operating leases are charged on a straight-line basis over the lease term, even if the
payments are not made on such a basis Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to sign an
operating lease are similarly spread on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where the
perniod to the review date on which the rent i1s first expected to be adjusted to the prevailing market
rate 1s shorter than the full lease term, in which case the shorter period 1s used

Pensions
Defined benefit pension scheme

The amounts charged to the profit and loss account are the current service costs and gains and
losses on seftlements and curtaiiments They are included within staff costs  Past service costs are
recognised immediately in the profit and loss account if the benefits have vested If the benefits
have not vested immediately the costs are recogmised over the perod untl vesting cccurs  The
interest cost and the expected return on the assets are shown as a net amount of other finance costs
or credits within interest payable or receivable Actuanal gains and losses are recognised
immediately in the consolidated statement of total recognised gains and losses

The defined benefit scheme I1s funded, with the assets of the scheme held separately from those of
the Group, in separate trustee admmnistered funds Pension scheme assets are measured at farr
value and habilities are measured on an actuanal basis using the projected umt method and
discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a high guality corporate bond of
equivalent currency and term to the scheme liabilities The actuanal valuations are obtained at least
tnennially and are updated at each balance sheet date

The resulting defined benefit asset or llability, net of the related deferred tax, 1s presented separately
after other net assets on the face of the balance sheet
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Defined contribution pension schemes

The Group also operates defined contribution pension schemes The assets of the schemes are
held separately from those of the Group in independently administered funds The amounts charged
to the profit and less account represent the contributions payable to the schemes In the penod
Difterences between contnbutions payable in the year and contrtbutions actually paid are shown as
either accruals or prepayments in the balance sheet

Provisions

A provision 1s recogmised in the balance sheet when the Group has a present legal or constructive
abhgation as a result of a past event and it 1s probable that an outflow ¢of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligaticn Provisions are discounted where the mpact of discounting the
expected future cash flows 1s matenal

Financial instruments

The Group's funding, hguidity and exposure to interest rate nsks are managed within a framework of
policies and guidelines authorised by the Board of Directors In accordance with these policies
financial denvative instruments are used to manage interest rate and currency exposure

Where approprate these instruments are recorded at fair value and accounted for as descnbed
below

Trade debtors

Trade debtors are intially recognised at fawr wvalue Appropriate allowances for estimated
irrecoverable amounts are recogmsed where the estimated cash flows are less than the carrying
amount

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

The Group uses Interest rate swaps and foreign exchange forward contracts to hedge interest rate
and foreign currency rnisk ansing on debt instruments

Changes in farr value of dervatives that are designated and are effective as hedges of future cash
flows are recognised directly in equity within the hedge reserve Changes in fair value of denvatives
that are designated and are effective as fair value hedges are recognised in the profit and loss
account but effectively offset changes in fair value of the hedged item

Changes in the fair value of denivatives that do not qualfy for hedge accounting are recognised in the
profit and loss account as they arise

Financial assets and financial labiliies are offset where they are settled net as a matter of practice
and there 1s legal nght to offset

Borrowings

All borrowings are initially stated at the fair value of the consideration received after deduction of
Issue costs Issue costs together with other finance costis such as premwums on redemption are
charged to the profit and loss account over the term of the borrowings and represent a constant
proportion of the balance of capital repayments outstanding Accrued finance costs attnbutable to
borrowings are included in accrued charges within current labilities, unless the finance cost 1s only
repayable on redempticn, in which case the accrued finance costs are included within the carrying
value of borrowings Accrued 1ssue costs are netted against the carrying value of borrowings
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2 Segmental reporting

Turnover anses entirely in the United Kingdom and is attributable to the continuing activity of
transportation of natural gas and the provision of related services, which the Directors consider
represents a single class of business

3 Cost of sales, gross profit and distribution costs

Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March

2007 2006

£'m £'m

Turnover 594 6 5220
Cost of sales (60.2) {61 6)
Gross profit 534.4 460 4
Distnbution costs (503.1) (380 6)
Other operating income 0.6 05
Operating profit 39 803

Cost of sales includes the cost of shrninkage gas purchases together with certain other direct cost of
sales Distribution costs include the costs of aperating the distnbution network together with
depreciation, goodwill amortisation and replacement expenditure
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4 Loss on ordinary activities before taxation

Loss on ordinary activities before taxation 1s stated after charging/(crediting)

Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March

2007 2006

£'m £'m

Auditors' remuneration 0.3 03

Goodwill amorhisation 9.4 82
Depreciation

- owned assets 741 598

- leased assets 13 57

Profit on disposal of fixed assets (02) -

Replacement expenditure 174.7 1236

impairment of trade debtors 04 04

Rentals under aperating leases — other assets 13 15

Exceptional item — losses on swap contracts (see note 16) - 2050

Auditors' remuneration for the Group compnses £190,000 (2006 £173,000) in respect of statutory
and regulatory audit services, £67,000 (2006 £120,000) in respect of other services pursuant to
legislation and £23,500 (2006 £56,000) in respect of taxation services Auditors’ remuneration in
respect of statutory audit services for the Company amounted to £11,000 (2006 £15,000)

In addition to the above services, the Group's auditors acted as auditors to the Scotia Gas Networks
Pension Scheme, and fees of £7,500 (2006 €nil) have been charged by the auditors to the Group In
respect of these services

5 Employee information and directors’ emoluments

The Group had 3,442 full ime equivalent employees as of 31 March 2007 (31 March 2006 2,390)
The average monthly number of full hime equwalent employees during the year was 3,124 (year
ended 31 March 2006 1,698 employees, including the perod prior to 1 June 2005 when the Group
did not have any employees)

The Directors did not receive any remuneration for their services to the Group during the year, or
dunng the prior year No retirement benefits are accruing in the year or in the prior year to any
Dirgctors under money purchase or defined benefit schemes, i respect of their services to the
Group
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Staff costs for the Group dunng the year are as follows

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2007 2006
£'m £'m

Statff costs
Wages and salaries 101.9 579
Social security costs 9.0 48
Pension costs {see note 26) 204 121
1313 74 8

The average monthly number of full tme equivalent employees employed by the Company during
the year was 55 (year ended 31 March 2006 36 employees, including the penocd prior to 1 June

2005 when the Company did not have any employees)
borne by the Cempany's subsidiary undertakings

6 Interest receivable and similar income

The staff costs for these employees are

Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March

2007 2006

£'m £'m

Iinterest recevable on short term deposits 1.5 34
Other finance income

Expected return on pension scheme assets (see note 26) 21.7 156

Interest on pension scheme habilities (see note 26) (18.9) (13 4)

2.8 22

43 56
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7  Interest payable and similar charges

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2007 2006
£'m £'m
Bank loans 49 43 4
Index hnked bond interest 308 131
Other interest payable on bonds 824 355
Shareholders’ loan interest (see note 27) 71.6 606
Other interest payable 16.3 214
Unwind of discounts in provisions (see note 17) 1.2
207 2 1740
Exceptional loss on swap contracts (see note 16) - 2050
207 2 3790
8 Taxon loss on ordinary activities
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2007 2006
£'m £'m
Analysis of tax credit in the year
United Kingdom
Corporation tax at 30% (2006 30%)
Adjustment In respect of prior year — surrender of tax losses 26 2 -
Total current tax credit 262 -
Deferred tax
Deterred tax credit for the year 18.7 592
Adjustments in respect of prior year (29.0) -
Total deferred tax (charge)/credit for the year (10.3) 5g 2
Total tax credit on loss on ordinary activities 159 592

36



Scotia Gas Networks plc

Factors affecting the current tax crednt

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2007 2006
£'m 2'm
Loss on ordinary activittes before tax (170.7) (293 1)
Loss on ordinary activiies multiplied by standard rate of corporation
tax in the UK of 30% (51.2) (88 0)
Effects of
Deferred tax on accelerated capital allowances (49) (31)
Deferred tax on unutiised losses 18.4 619
Depreciation on non-qualifying assets 8.2 84
Other short term timing differences 5.2 04
Tax losses not recognised 17.8 183
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 6.5 21
Adjustment in respect of prior year — surrender of tax losses (26.2) -
Current tax credit (26 2) -

9 Loss of the Company for the financial year

The Company's loss for the year amounted to £24 4 milhon (year ended 31 March 2006 £59 3

million)

The Directors have taken advantage of the exemption avallable under section 230 of the

Companies Act 1985 and accordingly no separate profit and loss account 1s presented In respect of

the Company
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10 iIntangible fixed assets

Goodwiil
Group £'m
Cost
At 1 Apri 2006 and at 31 March 2007 482 1
Accumulated amorhsation
At 1 April 2006 82
Charge for the year 94
At 31 March 2007 176
Net book value
At 31 March 2007 464.5
At 31 March 2006 4739

The goodwill which arose on the acquisitions of Scotland Gas Networks ple and Southern Gas
Networks plc 1s being amortised on a straight ne basis over 50 years This 1s the penod over which
the Directors estimate that the value of the underlying businesses acquired are expected to exceed
the value of the underlying assets

A review for impairment of goodwill 1s carned out at the end of each financial year No impairment
loss has been recorded in either the current or the prior year
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11 Tangible fixed assets

Motor
vehicles and
Land and Plant and office
burldings machinery  equipment Total
Group £'m £'m £'m £'m
Cost
At 1 April 2006 79 3,203 4 239 3,2352
Reclassifications 12 (8 8) 76 -
Additions 85 789 330 120 4
At 31 March 2067 176 3,273.5 64.5 3,355.6
Depreciation
At 1 Apnil 2006 04 570 79 653
Reclassifications - 05 (0 5) -
Charge for the year 05 726 23 754
At 31 March 2007 09 130 1 9.7 140.7
Net book value
At 31 March 2007 167 3,143.4 548 32149
At 31 March 2006 75 3,146 4 160 3,169 9

Included within motor vehicles and office equipment are assets held under finance leases with a net
book value of £1 5 million {2006 £2 8 million)

31 March 31 March

2007 2006

The Group net book value of land and bulldings comprises £'m £'m
Freehold properties 161 69
Short leasehold properties 06 06
Net book value 16.7 75

The Company has no tangible fixed assets in either year

39



Scotia Gas Networks plc

The Group has received customer contributions relating to piant and machinery in accordance with
the Group’s accounting pelicy the assets are capitalised within fixed assets and recogrised as
deferred income in the balance sheet The deferred income is released to the profit and loss
account over the estimated lives of the related assets The amount deferred under thus policy was as
follows

31 March 31 March
2007 2006
Deferred income £'m £'m
Customer contributions brought forward 28.4 -
Customer contributtons held by subsidianes at acquisition - 20
Customer contributions received 1n year 225 264
Amortisation in year {0 6) -
50.3 284
The Company has no deferred income
12 Fixed asset investments
Group Company
£'m £'m
Cost and net book value
Shares in Group undertakings
At 1 Apnl 2006 and at 31 March 2007 - 948 4
Other investments
At 1 Apnl 2006 and at 31 March 2007 02 -
02 948 4

Other fixed asset iInvestments

Other fixed asset investmenis relate to the Group’s investments in Xoserve Limited, winch provides
transportation transactional services on behalf of all the major gas network transportation
companies The Group holds 23 1% (2006 23 1%) of the ordinary shares of Xoserve Limited

During the year the Group received dividends of £326,000 (2006 Znil} in relation to this investment
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Interests in Group undertakings
Details of the principal subsidiary undertakings at the end of the year, which are directly wholly

owned by the Company are as follows

Name of subsidiary Description of Country of Principal activities
shares held registration
Southern Gas Netweorks 160,174,772 England Development, administration,
plc ordinary shares & maintenance and operation of regional
of £1 each Wales gas distnbution system and supply of
transportation services
Scotland Gas Networks 49,392,787 Scotland Development, administration,
ple ordinary shares maintenance and operation of regional
of £1 each gas distribution system and supply of
transpornation services
SGN Contracting 1 ordinary share England Supply of contracting services
Limited of £1 &
Wales
SGN Connections 1 ordinary share England Supply of gas connections services
Limited of £1 &
Wales
SGN Commercial 1 ordinary share England Supply of commercial services
Services Limited of £1 &
Wales
13 Debtors
Group Company
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2007 2006 2007 2006
£'m £'m £'m £'m

Amounts falling due within one year

Trade debtors 37.1 46 9 - -
Amounts owed by Group undertakings - - g95.5 834
Prepayments and accrued income 8.6 139 0.2 -

Denvative financial instruments (see
note 16) 17.1 41 . -

Other debtors . ) 23.4 185

62.8 649 1191 1019
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14 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Group Company

31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March

2007 2006 2007 2006

£'m £m £'m £'m

Bank loans and overdrafts 128 8 250 9.3 255

Trade creditors 43.3 321 - -

Amounts owed to Group undertakings - - 113.6 104 8
Other amounts owed to shareholders

(see note 27) 04 06 - -

Other taxation and social securnty 13.7 421 0.1 -

Other creditors 3.3 48 4 0.7 44 3

Accrued interast 57.3 630 23.6 236

Other accruals 55.3 508 0.5 -

Deferred income 132 71 - -
Dervative financial instruments (see

note 16) 10.6 - - -

325.9 269 1 147.8 198 2
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15 Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

Group Company
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2007 2006 2007 2006
£'m £'m £'m £'m

Bonds:

Fixed rate and index linked. - -
£257m 4 75% fixed rate due 2017 255.4 254 6 - -
£165m 2 127% index linked due 2022 168.6 164 5 - -
£225m 4 875% fixed rate due 2034 2236 2242 - -
£215m 4 875% fixed rate due 2020 214.0 2138 - -
£150m 2 066% index inked due 2025 153.2 1495 - -
£375m 4 875% fixed rate due 2029 373.2 3727 - -
£250m 2 013% index hnked due 2035 2554 2490 - -

1,643 4 1,628 3 . -

Floating rates.

Euro 365m floating rate lean note due
2010 246.0 2501 - -
£233m floating rate loan note due
2015 2324 232 2 - -
£50m floating rate loan note due 2015 499 49 9 - -
£50m floating rate loan note due 2015 499 499 - -
578.2 582 1 - -
Total bonds 22216 22104 -
Shareholders' loans (see note 27) 563 6 5737 563 6 5737
2,785 2 2,784 1 563.6 5737

The shareholder loans, which are subordinated, are redeemable at par on 31 May 2015, or may be
redeemed at par by the Company on or after 1 June 2006 by giving due notice Interest accrues ata
fixed rate of 12 5% per annum and the Company may, upon giving due notice, elect to pay some or
all of the interest payable through the 1ssuance of further loans to sharehoiders

Of the above borrowings, amounts falling due after more than five years total £2,539 2 million {2006
£2,534 0 million) and £246 0 million (2006 £250 1 million) fails due after more than two years but not
more than five years The Company’s borrowings fall due in more than five years

The above borrowings are stated after the deduction of issue costs of £8 8 milion (2006 £9 4
milion) Certain interest costs in respect of index linked bonds are not payable until the principal
amount of the bond s repaird and are in¢luded within the carrying value of the barrowings stated
above The amount included in the carrying value of the borrowings at 31 March 2007 1s £137
milion (2006 £nil)
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16 Financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments

The Group’s funding, hquidity and exposure to interest rate and foreign exchange nsks are managed
within a framework of pohcies and guidelines authonsed by the Board of Directors In accordance
with these policies, and in accordance with covenants set out as part of bond issues made by the
Group, financial denvative instruments are used to manage interest rate and currency exposure

In the prior year, the Group entered into interest rate swap contracts with an aggregate notional
princtpal amount of £2,000 0 milhion to fix the bulk of the Group’s interest cost aver an average
penod of 15 years In October 2005, permanent long term capital markets debt was 1ssued to
replace fioating rate shart term loans At that point these swaps became obsolete and consequently
matching swaps were transacted (under which the Group received fixed rate interest) to close out
the position Mark to market valuation of the swaps at the time of the bond 1ss5ue demonstrated
losses of £205 0 milion which crystalised at the tme of matching out the swaps These losses were
recogmised In the consohdated profit and loss account for the year ended 31 March 2006 Changes
in the fair value of these swaps are recognised in the profit and loss account as they anse The
corresponding obligation in respect of these swaps 15 recorded as an onerous contract provision In
the balance sheet (see note 17)

In order to achieve the Group’s target interest rate profile for long term borrowings of between 80
and 85% of borrowings at either fixed rate or index Iinked, excluding borrowings from shareholders,
the Group has mantained further interest rate swaps dunng the year These interest rate swaps
have the effect of converting a net nohonal principal amount of £168 0 milion trom floating rates to
fixed rates

The Group has used hedge accounting in respect of cash flow hedges, to the extent that they quahfy
far hedge accountng Gams on those cash flow hedges which qualfy for hedge accounting are
recognised within equity {see note 19) These gains will reverse in the consolidated profit and loss
account in the period to October 2015, being the life of the swaps

The Group has also entered into cross currency swaps (which have been designated as far value
hedges) with an aggregate notional principal amount of Euro 365 0 million, which has the effect of
converting the Group's Euro 3650 million floating rate loan note into a floating rate Sterling
obhgation

The fair values of the Group’s derwvative financial instruments are as follows

31 March 2007 31 March 2006
Assets Liabilities Assets  Liabilities
£'m E'm £'m £'m
Interest rate swaps — cash flow hedges 171 - 41 -
Currency swaps — fair value hedges - {3.2) 38 {13)
Other interest rate swaps - (194.5) - {205 0)
Other denvative financial instruments - (01) - -
171 (197.8) 79 (206 3)

The Company has no derivative financial instruments
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Borrowings

The exposure of the Group’s borrowings to interest rate changes, after taking account of interest rate

swaps 15 as follows

31 March 2007

31 March 2006

Bonds Bonds
and other Shareholders’ and other Shareholders’
borrowings loans Total borrowings loans Total
£'m £'m £'m £m £m £'m
Borrowings at
floating rates
Falling due
Within one year 120.0 - 1200 - -
After more than one
Total 698.2 - §98.2 582 1 - 5821
Effect of interest rate
swaps (168 0) - {168.0) (168 0} - (168 Q)
530.2 - 530.2 4141 - 414 1
Borrawings at fixed
rates and index
linked
Faliing due after
more than one year 1,643 4 563 6 2,207 () 1,628 3 5737 2,202 0
Effect of interest rate
swaps 168.0 - 168 0 168 0 - 168 ©
1,811.4 563.6 2,375.0 1,796 3 5737 2,3700
2,341 6 563 6 2,905.2 22104 5737 2,784 1

The fair values of short term deposits and other short term financial assets and liabiities approximate
to thewr book values The fair value of bonds and other borrowings are as follows

31 March 2007

31 March 2006

Fair value Book value Fair value Book value

£'m £'m £'m £'m
Bonds and other borrowings 2,190.7 22216 2,225 3 22104
Shareholders’ loans 550.2 5636 568 6 5737
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The effective interest rates of the Group's financial instruments are

31 March 31 March

2007 2006

% %

Bank and other short term borrowings 5.7 -
Bonds 55 50
Shareholders' loans 125 125
Short term deposits 5.3 45

In addition to the above, the Group has an annual obligation amounting to 1 0% (2006 1 0%) in
respect of interest on onerous financial instruments (interest rate swaps) which have an aggregate
notional principal amount of £2,000 0 milhon {see note 17) As explained above, these interest rate
swaps were transacted in the pnor year in hine with the Group's interest rate hedging policy

17 Provisions for liabilities

Restructunng
costs, other

Onerous onerous

financial contracts and
Group nstruments other Environmental Deferredtax Total
£'m £'m £'m £'m £'m
At 1 Apnl 2006 2050 232 228 2332 484 2
Ansing dunng the year 17 61 27 - 105
Utihised during the year (19 5) (0 4} - - (19 9)
Released dunng the year - {12 2) . - {12 2)
Net movement in deferred tax - - - 154 154
Amortisation of discount - - 12 - 12
At 31 March 2007 187 2 167 267 248 6 479.2

The onerous financial instruments provision relates to interest rate swap contracts which the Group
holds (see note 16) The provision recorded at each balance sheet date represents the aggregate
farr value of the swap contracts held The provision will be utilised as cash settlement payments are
made over the life of the swaps over the next eighteen years

The restructunng costs, other onerous contracts and other prowvision represent the cost of executing
cettain restructuning plans and a provision for other legal and constructive obligations held by the
Group This provision 1s expected to be utilised over the next fifteen years

The environmental provision represents the Directors’ best estmate of environmental restoration
costs, where the Group has a legal obligation to restore sites at the balance sheet date The
provision has been discounted and 1s stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to be
required to settle the obligation This provision is expected to be utilised over the next twenty years
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The net movement on the deferred tax provision has ansen as a result of a surrender of tax losses
during the year (see note 27), offset by other movements in the year

The Company has no provisions n erther year

Deferred taxation recognised mn the financial statemants (excluding deferred tax recognised in
respect of pension habilities (see note 26)) 1s as follows

Group Company
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2007 2006 2007 2006
£'m £'m £'m £'m
Accelerated capital allowances (299 8) (298 3) - -
Deferred tax asset on losses 521 659 - -
Deferred tax on cash flow hedges {5.1) {12) - -
Other iming differences 42 04 - -
(248 6) (233 2) - -

The Group has unrecogrised deferred tax assets 1n respect of unutthsed tax losses of £35 5 milion
(2006 £18 3 millon) Deferred tax assets have been recognised in respect of tax losses to the
extent that it 1s considered probable that these assets will be recovered. Deferred tax assets have
not been recognised In respect of unutilised tax losses in the Company amounting to £35 5 million
{2006 £17 8 million)

In accordance with FRS 19 (“Deferred tax”), deferred tax has been measured based upon a
corporation tax rate of 30%, being the tax rate enacted at the balance sheet date The government
have announced a reduction In the corporation tax rate to 28% with effect from 1 April 2008, which
will have the effect of reducing beth the deferred tax provision and the effective rate of tax once the
change 1s brought into law
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18 Called up share capital

31 March 2007

31 March 2006

Number £'m Number £'m

Authonised
‘A’ ordinary shares of £1 each 4,000,000,000 4000 4,000,000,000 4,000
‘B ordinary shares of £1 each  2,000,000,000 2,000 2,000,000,000 2,000
‘C' ordinary shares of £1 each  2,000,000,000 2,000 2,000,000,000 2,000
8,000 8,000

31 March 2007

31 March 2006

Number £'m Number £'m
Allotted, called up and fully paid
‘A’ ordinary shares of £1 each 235,025,002 235.0 235,025,002 235.0
‘B’ ordinary shares of £1 each 117,512,501 117.5 117,512,501 1175
‘C’ ordinary shares of £1 each 117,512,501 117.5 117,512,501 1175
Total ordinary shares of £1 each 470,050,004 470.0 470,050,004 4700

The ‘A", ‘B and ‘C’ ordinary shares rank par passu in alt respects

19 Reserves

Profit and loss

Hedge reserve account
Group Company Group  Company
£'m £'m £'m £'m
At 1 Apnl 2008 29 {238 9) (59 3)
Loss for the financial year - (154 8) (24 4)
Cash flow hedges (net of related tax) 85 - - -
Actuanal loss on defined benefit
pension schemes (net of related tax) _ - - (286) -
At 31 March 2007 114 - (396 3) (83.7)
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20 Reconciliation of movements in Group shareholders’ funds

Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March

2007 2006

£'m £'m

Loss for the financial year (154.8) (233 9)
Issue of share capital - 4700
Cash flow hedges (net of related tax) 85 29
Actuanal loss on defined benefit pension scheme (net of related tax) (2 6) {5 Q)
Net (decrease)/increase in shareholders' funds (148 9) 234 0
Opening shareholders’ funds 234.0 -
Closing shareholders’ funds 85.1 2340

21 Cash flow from operating activities

Reconciliation of operating profit to net cash inflow from operating activities

Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March
2007 2006
Continuing operations £'m £'m
Operating profit 319 803
Depreciation charge 754 653
Amortisation of deferred income (0 6)
Profit on sale of fixed assets (0.2} -
Goodwill amortisation 9.4 82
Decrease/(increase) in debtors 15.1 (53)
Increase in creditors 79 245
Movement in provisions 04 29
Total net cash inflow from operating activities 139.3 1759
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22 Analysis of net debt

1 April Non-cash 31 March
20086 Cash flow changes 2007
£'m £'m £'m £'m
Bank overdraft (25.0) 162 - (8.8)
Debt due within one year
- Bank ioans - (1200) - (120.0)
- Financial nstruments - - (10 6) (10.6)
Debt due after more than one year
- Bonds {2,210.4) - (11 2) {2,221 6)
- Shareholders’ loans {573.7) 460 (35 9) {563 6)
Onerous financial instruments {205.0) 195 17N {(187.2)
Other financial instruments 41 07 137 17 1
Short term deposits 132.3 (102 1) - 302
{2,877 7) (141 1) (457) {3,064.5)

Short term deposits comprise short term highly liquid investments with a matunty of three months or
less

Non-cash changes noted above represent fair value movements on financial instruments {see note
18) and interest incutred on index linked bonds and on shareholders’ loans during the year which
has not been paid and has been included within the carnying value of amounts borrowed

23 Acquisitions

On 1 June 2005, the Company purchased the entire share capital of Southern Gas Networks Limited
and Scotland Gas Networks Limited These companies acquired the trade and assets of the
Scotland and Southem regional gas networks respectively on 1 May 2005 Prior to 1 May 2005 the
businesses were part of the business of Transco plc, a subsidiary of National Gnd Transco plc

Southern Gas Networks Limited and Scotland Gas Networks Limited subsequently re-registered as
puihc imited comparnies and changed their names to Scuthern Gas Networks ple and Scotland Gas
Networks plc respectively The acquisitions have been accounted for using the acquisition method
of accounting

The table below summarnises the book values of the entifiable assets and abities acquired for
both acquisitions at 1 June 2005, together with the Group's assessment of their fair values at the
date of the acquisition The book values are those of the underlying businesses, pnor to adjustments
afsing from thew sale by Transco ple  The farr value adjustments reflect the assessment of value
based upon the regulatory value of the business and the far value of the working capital and
provisions The principal accounting policy alignments reflect the adoption of the Group's policies on
deferred taxation and pensions
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Accounting
policy Fair value to
Book value alignment Revaluation the Group
£'m £'m £'m £'m
Tangible fixed assets 1,429 4 1,696 6 3,126 0
Fixed asset investments 03 - - 03
Working capital (9 9) - (29 7) (39 2)
Amounts owed to Transco plc {2,453 3) - - (2,453 3)
Deferred tax - {201 2) (291 2)
Other prowisions for liabilities (2 5) (37 8) (45 5) (85 8)
Net assets (1,035.6) (329.0) 1,621.4 256.8
Goodwill 482.1
Total consideration (including 738 9

acquisition expenses)

Deferred cash consideration of £44 3 milon has been pard in the year ended 31 March 2007 {year
ended 31 March 2006 cash consideration paid amounted to £691 9 million)

24 Operating lease commitments

The Group has lease agreements in respect of properties for which the payments extend over a

number of years

31 March 31 March
2007 2006
£'m £'m

Annual commitments under non-cancellable operating leases
Within one year - 01
Within two to five years 07 07
After five years 07 07
1.4 15

The Company has no operating lease cornmitments in either year

25 Capital commitments

Capital projects contracted for by the Group but not provided n the financial statements amounted to

£8 6 mithon at 31 March 2007 (3% March 2006 £17 1 rmithon)
commitments at 31 March 2007 (31 March 2008 £nil}

The Company has no capital
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26 Pension commitments

A sgnificant proportion of the Group's employees are members of the Scotia Gas Networks Pension
Scheme (“the Scheme” The Scheme provides final salary detined benefits for employees who
Jjoined the Lattice Group Scheme prior to 31 March 2002 A defined contnbution section was added
to the Lattice Group Scheme from 1 Apnl 2002 for employees joining the Lattice Group Scheme irom
that date Employees of the Group who were previously members of the Lattice Group Scheme
transferred to the Scotia Gas Networks Pension Scheme on 1 December 2005

a) Defined benefit scheme

The Scheme 15 operated by the Company and is funded with assets held in separate trustee
administered funds It 1s subject to Independent valuations at least every three years, on the basis of
which the qualified actuary determines the rate of employers’ contribution, which, together with the
specified contributions payable by the employees and proceeds from the scheme’s assets, are
expected to be sufficient to fund the benefits payable under the scheme

The latest full actuanal valuation was carried out as at 31 March 2006 In accordance with FRS 17,
a limited actuanal review has been carned out by Hymans Robertson at 31 March 2007 using the
projected unit method

The following financial assumptions have been used

As at 31 Asat31 Asat1June

March 2007  March 2006 2005

Discount rate 5.4% pa 4 9% pa 51% pa
Inflation assumption 3.1% pa 2 9% pa 2 7% pa
Rate of increase of salanes 4 6% pa 4 4% pa 4 2% pa
Rate of increase of pensions payment 3.1% pa 2 9% pa 2 7% pa

The assumptions relating to longevity underlying the pension liabilittes are based on standard
actuaral mortahty tables and include an allowance for future improvements in longewvity The
assumed life expectancy in years for a member once they reach age 65 are as follows

As at 31 As at 31 As at 31 As at 31

March 2007 March 2007 March 2006 March 2006

Male Female Male Female

Member currently aged 65 21 23 20 23
Member currently aged 45 22 24 22 24
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The far value of the assets in the scheme, the present value of the habilities in the scheme and the

expected rate of return were

31 March 2007 31 March 2008 1 June 2005
Long term Long term Long term
rate of rate of rate of
return Value return Value retun  Value
expected £'m axpected £'m expected £'m
Equities 8.0% 235.7 7 7% 2206 79% 2032
Government bonds 45% 64 3 4 2% 67 5 4 4% 508
Corporate bonds 51% 31.3 4 9% 24 4 51% -
Property 55% 15.3 52% - 54% -
Cash 5.9% 1.0 4 8% 44 4 5% -
;c’)ézlt ;narket value of 347 6 3169 054 0
Actuanal value of habilities {414.6) (376 1) {308 0)
Deficit in scheme (67 0} (59 2) {54 0)
Related deferred tax asset 20.1 178 162
Net pension liabihty (46.9) {41 4) {37 8}

Analysis of the amounts recognised in the profit and loss account

Year Year
ended ended
31 March 31 March
2007 20086
£'m £'m
Amocunt charged to operating profit.

Current service cost (197) (11 8)

Analysis of the amount credited to finance income.
Expected return on pension scheme assets (see note 6) 217 1586
Interest on pension scheme labilities {see note 6) (18.9) (13.4)
Net inance income 28 22
Net charge to the profit and loss account {16.9) (9 6)
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Analysis of the amount recognised in the statement of total recognised gains and losses

(STRGL)
Year Year
ended ended
31 March 31 March
2007 20086
£'m £'m
Actual return less expected return on pension scheme assets
(3.4) 365
Expenence gains and losses on scheme liabilities (31.3) -
Changes in financial assumptions underlying the present value of the
scheme habilies 31.0 {41 5)
Actuarial loss recognised in STRGL (3.7) (50}
There were no amounts recognised in the statement of total recognised gains and losses for the
pencd from 10 Novermnber 2003 (date of incorporation of the Company) to 31 March 2005, and
accordingly there were no experience gains and losses for this penod
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
Experience gains and losses 2007 2006
Difference between the expected and actual return on scheme assets £(3.4)m £36 5m
- Percentage of scheme assets at year end {(10)% 11 5%
Expenence gains and losses on scheme labilities £(31.3)m -
- Percentage of the present value of scheme labiities at year end {7 5)% -
Changes in financial assumptions underlying scheme habilities £31.0m £(41 5)m
- Percentage of the present value of scheme labilities at year end 7.5% (11 0%
Total actuanial loss recognised in the statement of total recognised gains
and losses £(3.7)m £(5 0)m
- Percentage of the present value of scheme habilities at year end (0.9)% (1 3)%
Movement in deficit during the year £'m 'm
Deficit in scheme at 1 Apnl 2006 (59 2) (54 0)
Movement in year
- Current service costs (197) (11 8)
- Contributions 12.8 94
- Other finance income 28 22
- Actuanal loss {3.7) (50)
Deficit in scheme at end of the year {67.0) {59 2)
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The Group's contnbution rate durning the year was 23 3% of pensionable earnings, which has
Increased to 37 3% with effect from 1 Apnil 2007 Additionally, the Group has agreed to make special
pension contributions to repair the deficit amounting to £13 5 million per year from 1 Apnl 2007

(b) Defined contribution schemes

The amounts recogmised in the profit and loss account 1s as follows

Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March

2007 2006

£'m £'m

Amount charged in respect of defined contribution schemes 07 03

27 Related parties

The Company 15 owned by a consortium consisting of Scottish and Southern Energy plc (50%),
OTPPB Investments (UK} Limited (25%), whtch 1s owned by Ontano Teachers' Pension Plan Board
and Boreals Infrastructure Europe {UK) Limited (25%) which s indirectly whally owned by the
Ontano Municipal Employees Retirement System

It 1s the opinon of the Directors that the Group and Company have no single controlling party as
the Company i1s controlled jointly by the consortium

Transactions with shareholders

Amounts owed to shareholders and loans from shareholders are set out below

Group
31 March 31 March
2007 2006
£’m £m
Shareholders’ loans
Scottish and Southern Energy plc 281.8 2869
Boreals Infrastructure Europe (UK) Limited 140.9 143 4
OTPPB Investments (UK) Limited 1409 143 4
563.6 5737
Interest owed to shareholders:
Scottish and Southern Energy plc 118 120
Borealis Inirastructure Europe (UK) Limited 59 60
OTPPB Investments (UK) Limited 59 60
236 240
Other amounts owed to shareholders:
Scothish and Southern Energy plc 114 110
11.4 110
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The aggregate interest expense charged to the profit and loss account In respect of shareholders’
loans was £716 million (year ended 31 March 2006 £606 million) Interest accrues on the
shareholders’ loans at a fixed rate of 12 5% per annum, and s payable semi-annually in arrears on
30 November and 31 May each year The Company may, upon gwving due notice, elect to pay some
or all of the interest payable through the i1ssuance of further ioans to shareholders Durnng the year
an aggregate amount of £35 9 million (year ended 31 March 2006 £33 7 million) of additional loans
were ssued in this way

Other than interest charges relating to shareholder loans, the following transactions took place
dunng the year between the Group and the Scottish and Southern Energy pic group of companies
(“SSEH)

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March

2007 2006

£'m £'m

Sales of goods and services 775 62 1
Purchase of goods and services {66 5) {52 3)
Sale of tax losses 262 -

Sales of goods and services to SSE prnirmarily represent gas transportation services At 31 March
2007 an amount of £0 3 million {2006. £nil} was owed by SSE in relaton to these services and 15
included within trade debtors

SSE provide services to the Group in the form of a management services agreement for corporate
services The Group also purchases certain tems such as consumables stock and shnnkage gas
from SSE Included within purchases of goods and services are direct costs in relaticn to tangible
fixed asset and acquisitions projects ncurred by SSE which have been recharged to the Group
These costs amount to £10 1 million (year ended 31 March 2006 £10 0 milhon) which have been
capitahised in the year

During the year, the Company has surrendered gross tax losses of £98 9 milion to SSE relating to
the period ended 31 March 2006 for an aggregate cash consideration of £26 2 milion  Cash
received from SSE in respect of the saie of these losses amounted to £26 6 milion, and accordmgly
an amount of £0 4 milhion 1s included within other amounts owed to shareholders in the balance
sheet
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